# 立法會 Legislative Council

LC Paper No. CB(1)825/00-01

Ref: CB1/R/3

# Paper for the House Committee meeting on 16 March 2001

### **Committee on Rules of Procedure**

### **Amendments to House Rules**

# **Purpose**

The Committee on Rules of Procedure (the Committee) has recently studied the House Rules and proposed that the Rules be amended as set out in this paper.

# **Background**

- 2. Between November 2000 and March 2001, the Committee has reviewed a number of provisions in the House Rules with a view to streamlining the procedural arrangements in relation to the following:
  - (a) procedure for the House Committee to recommend speaking time limits for debates on motions with no legislative effect (*House Rule 17*);
  - (b) standing arrangements for signification of Panel membership (*House Rule 22*);
  - (c) distribution of agenda and papers to the press/public observing committee meetings (*House Rule 24*); and
  - (d) procedure for election of the chairman and deputy chairman of a committee (*Appendix IV of House Rules*).
- 3. The Committee also took the opportunity to refine the wording of the Chinese text of the House Rules.

# Speaking time limits for debates on motions with no legislative effect

4. Rule 37(1) of the Rules of Procedure provides that the House Committee may recommend the speaking time limits for debates on motions with no legislative effect. As a current practice, the House Committee agrees at its meetings the speaking time limits to be recommended for each motion debate. Apart from some special cases, the House Committee has normally agreed that the speaking time limits stipulated in House Rule 17(b) should apply. To streamline the procedure, the Committee proposes to amend House Rule 17(b) to the effect that unless otherwise decided by the House Committee, the speaking time limits stipulated therein shall be deemed to have been agreed by the House Committee and shall be recommended to the President. Under the proposed arrangement, there will be no need for the Chairman of the House Committee to seek the agreement of the House Committee to the speaking time limits for each motion debate. The proposed amendments are provided in Appendix I.

# Signification of Panel membership

- 5. The House Committee, at its meeting on 4 October 2000, endorsed the standing arrangements for signification of Panel membership, as follows:
  - (a) All Members, except the President of the Council, shall be invited to signify membership for the Panels of their choice at the beginning of a new term. The deadline shall be noon on the Saturday immediately *following* the first Council meeting of the new term; and
  - (b) Members shall be given the opportunity to re-signify membership for the Panels of their choice at the beginning of each of the subsequent sessions of the term. The deadline shall be noon on the Saturday immediately *prior to* the first Council meeting in each of the subsequent sessions of the term.
- 6. Pursuant to the House Committee's decision and to reflect the above standing arrangements, the Committee proposes to amend House Rule 22(b) and (c), and to delete House Rule 22(q) for the purpose. The Committee also proposes to amend House Rule 22(c) and (d) to specify at which point in time a Member's membership of a Panel shall take effect. The proposed amendments are provided in **Appendix II**.

### Textual amendments to House Rule 22

7. In the course of the review of House Rule 22, the Committee considers that the wording of House Rule 22(o) and (p) should be amended to tie in with the provision of Rule 77(10) and (13) of the Rules of Procedure, i.e. all matters for the decision of a Panel or a joint Panel meeting shall be decided by "a majority of the members voting", instead of "a simple majority of the members present". The proposed amendments are also in **Appendix II**.

# Distribution of agenda and papers to the press/public

8. The current House Rule 24(p) provides that where committee meetings are held in public, the Secretariat will provide the press/public observing the meetings with the agenda and papers except for House Committee meetings where only the agenda will be provided. In practice, however, the press/public observing committee meetings, including House Committee meetings, are always provided with both the agenda and papers for the meetings. The Committee therefore proposes that House Rule 24(p) be amended to reflect the current practice. The proposed amendments are provided in **Appendix III**.

# Procedure for election of the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of committees

9. At present, the procedure for the election of the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the House Committee provided in Appendix IV of the House Rules also applies to Bills Committees and Panels. In the light of operational experience, the Committee proposes that the procedure be refined as set out in **Appendix IV** to facilitate the smooth conduct of the election. Some minor consequential amendments to House Rules 20(d), 21(e) and 22(f) are provided in **Appendix V**.

# **Proposed amendments to Chinese text of House Rules**

10. The Committee takes the opportunity to review the Chinese text of the House Rules to refine its wording. The proposed amendments are provided in **Appendix VI**.

# Advice sought

11. Members are invited to endorse the proposed amendments to the House Rules in Appendices I, II, III, IV, V and VI.

Council Business Division 1 Legislative Council Secretariat 13 March 2001

# **Proposed amendments to House Rule 17**

# 17. Motion Debates

(a) The minimum notice periods required for formal notice of motions and amendments to motions are as follows -

	Minimum notice required	Rules of Procedure
Notice of motion Notice of amendment to a motion	12 clear days 5 clear days	Rule 29(1) Rule 29(6)(a)
Notice of amendment to an amendment to a motion	3 clear days and at the President's discretion	

(b) Unless otherwise decided by the House Committee, the allocation of following speaking time limits for a motion debate should normally be as follows shall be deemed to have been agreed by the House Committee and shall be recommended to the President under Rule 37 of the Rules of Procedure -

# Maximum time allowed

Mover of the motion	
<ul> <li>introductory speech and reply</li> </ul>	15 mins (in total)
<ul><li>speech on proposed amendment(s)</li></ul>	5 mins (in total)
Mover of amendment to the motion	10 mins
Mover of amendment to an amendment	7 mins
to the motion	
Other speakers	7 mins each
Member who has been given permission	Additional 3 minutes
to reword his original proposed	
amendment to a motion which has beer	1
amended earlier on	

(c) When a motion to adjourn a motion debate is moved and where the House Committee has made a recommendation to the President under Rule 37 of the Rules of Procedure, Members speaking on the motion must limit their speeches to the recommended specified time if it is accepted by the President. Members should speak to that motion and not to the original motion.

# Proposed amendments to House Rule 22

### 22. Panels

- (a) The number, names and terms of reference of Panels shall be recommended by the House Committee for the approval of the Council.
- (b) A Panel shall consist of not less than six members including the chairman. Members may join a Panel by submission of returns to the Secretariat before the deadline set before the first meeting of the Panel in the session of the Council. Panel membership lasts until the Panels are dissolved upon the dissolution of the Council.
- (c) A Member who does not wish to remain as member of the Panel may resign from the Panel.
- (c) Members may join a Panel by submission of a return to the Secretariat by noon on the Saturday immediately following the first Council meeting of a new term. A Member's membership of a Panel lasts for the whole term unless the Member resigns from that Panel. For each of the remaining sessions of the term, a Member who wishes to join any Panel(s) in addition to those he has joined may do so by submission of a return to the Secretariat by noon on the Saturday immediately prior to the first Council meeting of that session and the deadline for submission of return shall be taken as the time when the Member's membership of the additional Panel(s) takes effect.
- (d) A Member who joins the Council after the start of the legislative a session should signify membership for the Panels of his choicemay join a Panel by submission of a return to the Secretariat within one month of the date on which he is declared elected as Member of the Council. His membership of the Panel shall take effect from the time his return is received by the Secretariat.
- (e) The Member who has the highest precedence in the Council among those who have joined a Panel is responsible for calling the first meeting of the Panel during the first session of a term of the Council, for the purpose of electing the chairman of the Panel. All other subsequent meetings will be called by the chairman in office.
- (f) The chairman and the deputy chairman of a Panel shall be elected from among its members and shall hold office until the election of the chairman and deputy chairman of the Panel in the session next following that for which they were elected. The procedure for

election of the chairman and deputy chairman as provided in rule 20(d) above shall also apply to Panels. A member who nominates an absent member for an office shall state that the absent member's acceptance of the nomination has been secured.

- (g) Election of chairman and deputy chairman of a Panel should normally take place at the first meeting of the Panel in the session.
- (h) A Member who is the chairman or deputy chairman of a Government advisory body in respect of matters which a Panel considers to be directly related to the terms of reference of the Panel shall not be the chairman or deputy chairman of the Panel.
- (i) A Member shall not be chairman or deputy chairman of more than one Panel at the same time.
- (j) In the event of the temporary absence of the chairman and deputy chairman, the Panel may elect a chairman to act during such absence.
- (k) When a Panel sits jointly with any other Panel for the purpose of considering any matter of common interest, the Panels shall decide which chairman should chair that meeting.
- (l) If the chairmen of two Panels cannot agree on how an issue straddling the work of the Panels should be handled, the chairman or, in his absence, the deputy chairman of the House Committee should be consulted on whether one of the Panels should take up the issue, or whether the Panels should hold a joint meeting.
- (m) If more than two Panels meet jointly on a subject of common interest, and if it is necessary, the chairman or, in his absence, the deputy chairman of the House Committee may be consulted as to whether the Panel having a prominent interest in the subject matter should convene a meeting with members of other interested Panels invited to attend, or whether informal briefings for all interested Members should be held. If the latter option is adopted, a convenor should be elected by and from among those Members present, and Members should be reminded at the beginning of the briefings that they are not covered by the Legislative Council (Powers and Privileges) Ordinance at such briefings as if they are covered at meetings of the Panels.
- (n) For the calculation of quorum, a Member who is member of both Panels at a joint meeting should be counted as one member of the joint meeting. The quorum will be one-third of the membership of the joint meeting including the chairman (a fraction of the whole number being disregarded) i.e. each Member will be counted only once in terms of membership and quorum.

- (o) For All matters for decision at a joint Panel meetings, voting should be done shall be decided by simple a majority of the members present at the joint meeting voting. Dissenting views expressed by members of different Panels should be recorded.
- (p) During a Panel meeting, a motion may be proposed if it is considered by the chairman of the Panel as directly related to an agenda item of that meeting. The motion will be proceeded with if agreed by a simple majority of the Panel members present voting. Any proposed motion or amendment to a motion should be presented to the Panel in written form.
- (q) All Panels will be dissolved upon dissolution of the Council.
- (fq) The relevant Panel should be consulted first before a major and/or potentially controversial legislative or financial proposal is introduced into the Council or the Finance Committee. In the event that the relevant Panel has not been consulted, the House Committee or Finance Committee shall decide whether to refer the proposal to the relevant Panel for consideration.
- (sr) Panels should not normally deal with individual cases handled under the Redress System of the Council except in respect of the policy issues arising therefrom.
- (ts) A Panel may form subcommittees to study specific issues and report to the Panel. Members of the subcommittees shall consist of members of that Panel
- (ut) Should any Panel consider it necessary to undertake any activities outside Hong Kong under the name of the Panel of the Council, the prior permission of the House Committee shall be sought. The decision of the House Committee shall be referred to The Legislative Council Commission for reference.
- (vu) A Panel shall make at least one report on its work to the Council in the session. If a particular matter is referred to a Panel for study, or a Panel is authorized to summon persons concerned to testify or give evidence, the Panel shall make a report to the Council after it has completed its consideration. The method of tabling a report in the Council is provided in rule 2. A Panel may as required seek the views of the House Committee on a particular matter, or inform the House Committee of the contents of its study report.

# **Proposed amendments to House Rule 24**

# 24. Guidelines for the Conduct of Meetings

(a) Meetings should normally be arranged within two-hour time slots as follows:

8:30 am - 10:30 am 10:45 am - 12:45 pm 2:30 pm - 4:30 pm 4:30 pm - 6:30 pm

[Meetings are normally not scheduled for Saturday afternoons, Sundays, and public holidays.]

- (b) To enable Members to participate in all meetings of the committees (including standing committees, panels, bills committees, subcommittees and select committees etc.) which they have joined, efforts should be made as far as practicable to avoid scheduling two meetings within the same time slot.
- (c) Notice of meetings of committees shall be in writing, stating the date, time and place at which the meeting is to be held and shall be given by the clerk at least three days before the day of the meeting, but shorter notice may be given in any case where the chairman so directs.
- (d) All Members, irrespective of whether they are members of that committee, may attend the meetings of the committee, and their views may be recorded in the minutes of meetings of the committee concerned. Members who attend the meetings of the committee but who are not its members, do not have any voting right in respect of the business of the committee.
- (e) Agenda and papers in connection with matters requiring consideration at a meeting shall be issued by the clerk as early as practicable before the meeting.
- (f) Members should confirm their attendance by returning the reply slips to the clerk to a committee before a meeting, or their absence will be assumed by the clerk for the purpose of calculating whether a quorum will be constituted before the meeting. Members should be punctual at meetings, and those who may be late for a meeting should inform the Secretariat as early as practicable.

- (g) Unless a quorum is present within 15 minutes of the time appointed for the meeting, the meeting will not be held.
- (h) If the attention of the chairman of a committee is drawn to the fact that a quorum is not present during a meeting, he shall direct the members to be summoned. If after 15 minutes have expired, a quorum is not then present the chairman shall close the meeting without question put.
- (i) When it is necessary to order a division during a meeting of a committee, the chairman of the committee should ensure that a quorum is present before he proceeds with the division.
- (j) At the first meeting of a committee, the chairman will anticipate the number of subsequent meetings required and set tentative dates for the subsequent meetings so that members may take note of the dates from the outset to facilitate attendance. In normal circumstances, a committee should not book more than three time slots at a time. A Panel may, at its first meeting, set tentative dates for meetings in the session.
- (k) The chairman will, as far as practicable, decide beforehand the time allowed for each particular item on the agenda of each meeting. This will be notified to all participants in advance. Discussions at meetings will have regard to the time allowed. Outsiders invited to attend will be informed of the duration in advance in order to facilitate planning for all concerned.
- (l) The decisions of a committee should not be reopened for discussion, unless with the permission of the committee.
- (m) The chairman, whenever necessary, should remind Members, Government officials and deputations to refrain from using "cocktail language" at committee meetings so as to facilitate the work of the simultaneous interpreters.
- (n) If persons involved are summoned to testify or give evidence before a committee, in accordance with Rule 80 of the Rules of Procedure, the committee should make reference to the procedures adopted in previous cases and determine its procedures for that particular case.

  Appendix V sets out the usage and practice in regard to the determination of claims of "public interest privilege" made by persons appearing before a committee of the Council.

- (o) Except as stated in the Rules of Procedure, and subject to the provisions of any administrative instructions for regulating the conduct of persons observing meetings, the public shall be admitted to all open committee meetings so far as there is accommodation. Wherever possible, prior notice of a decision to sit in private should be given.
- (p) Where meetings are held in public.
  - (i) The Secretariat will provide the press/public observing the meetings with the agenda and papers, the latter subject to the agreement of their authors.
  - (ii) For House Committee meetings, only the agenda will be made available to the press/public admitted to the meetings.
- (q) If at a meeting of a committee the chairman notices that a member of the public is behaving or is likely to behave in a disorderly manner, the chairman is entitled to seek the agreement of the committee to remove that person, or in urgent cases, to order the removal of such person.
- (r) The chairmen may, with the agreement of committees, exercise some flexibility in applying the above guidelines.

# Proposed amendments to Appendix IV of House Rules

# Procedure for Election of the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the House Committees

# **Presiding Member**

The election of the chairman and deputy chairman of the House a Committee shall be conducted at a meeting of the Committee.

### Election of chairman

# Presiding member

# 2. For the House Committee and Panels —

- (a) Where the election takes place at the first meeting of the House Committee or a Panel in a new term of the Legislative Council, the Mmember present who has the highest precedence shall preside at the election. If he is being nominated for the office, the member present who has the highest precedence among the members not nominated for the office shall preside;
- 3.(b) At any other election of chairman, the Mmember who was the chairman of the House Committee or the Panel before the election shall preside at the election. If he or she is absent or is being nominated for the office, the Mmember who was deputy chairman of the House Committee or the Panel before the election shall preside. If both Mmembers who were chairman and deputy chairman of the House Committee before the election are absent or are being nominated for the office, the Mmember present who has the highest precedence shall preside. If he is being nominated for the office, the member present who has the highest precedence among the members not nominated for the office shall preside.
- 3. For bills committees and subcommittees, the member present who has the highest precedence shall preside at the election. If he is being nominated for the office, the member present who has the highest precedence among the members not nominated for the office shall preside.

# Election procedure Election of Chairman

- 4. At the start of the election, Tthe presiding Mmember presiding shall call for nominations for the chairmanship. A valid nomination shall be made orally by a Mmember, seconded by at least one other Mmember who should not be the Mmember being nominated, and accepted by the Mmember being nominated. A member who nominates an absent member for the office is required to state that the absent member's acceptance of the nomination has been secured.
- 5. If the presiding member is being nominated for the office, he shall be replaced in accordance with paragraph 2 or 3 above, as appropriate, unless otherwise decided by the committee.
- <u>56</u>. If there is only one nomination, the <u>presiding Mm</u>ember <u>presiding shall</u> declare the nominee elected as chairman.
- 67. If there are two or more nominations, the <u>presiding Mmember presiding</u> shall announce a vote by secret ballot and shall order the clerk to distribute a ballot paper to each of the <u>Mmembers present</u>, including the <u>presiding Mmember-presiding</u>.
- 78. A Mmember present who wishes to vote shall put down in legible form the name of the nominee of his choice on the ballot paper, and place the ballot paper into the ballot box.
- 89. After all the Mmembers present who wish to vote have done so, the clerk shall count the ballot papers in front of all the Mmembers present and report the result to the presiding Mmember presiding who shall check the result for confirmation.
- 910. The <u>presiding Mm</u>ember <u>presiding</u> shall declare elected as chairman the nominee who receives the highest number of valid votes among all the nominees.
- 1011. If two or more nominees receive the same highest number of valid votes, the <u>presiding Mm</u>ember <u>presiding</u> shall announce that lots will be drawn by him to decide how he shall give the casting vote in respect of these nominees.
- 1112. The <u>presiding Mm</u>ember <u>presiding</u> shall then draw lots and give the casting vote to one of the nominees in accordance with the lot drawn, and shall forthwith declare that nominee elected as chairman.
- 1213. The elected chairman shall then take the chair and proceed with the remaining business of the meeting or adjourn the meeting, as the case may be.

# Election of **D**deputy **C**chairman

# Presiding member

1314. The chairman of the House Ccommittee shall preside at the election. (If he the chairman is absent, the Mmember present who has the highest precedence shall preside at the election.) If he is being nominated for the office, the member present who has the highest precedence among the members not nominated for the office shall preside.

# Election procedure

- 1415. The chairman (or the presiding member) shall call for nominations for the deputy chairmanship. A valid nomination shall be made orally by a Mmember, seconded by at least one other Mmember who should not be the Mmember being nominated, and accepted by the Mmember being nominated. A member who nominates an absent member for the office is required to state that the absent member's acceptance of the nomination has been secured.
- 1516. If there is only one nomination, the chairman shall declare the nominee elected as deputy chairman.
- 1617. If there are two or more nominations, the chairman shall announce a vote by secret ballot and shall order the clerk to distribute a ballot paper to each of the Mmembers present, including the chairman.
- 1718. A Mmember present who wishes to vote shall put down in legible form the name of the nominee of his choice on the ballot paper, and place the ballot paper into the ballot box.
- 1819. After all the Mmembers present who wish to vote have done so, the clerk shall count the ballot papers in front of all the Mmembers present and report the result to the chairman who shall check the result for confirmation.
- 1920. The chairman shall declare elected as deputy chairman the nominee who receives the highest number of valid votes among all the nominees.
- 2021. If two or more nominees receive the same highest number of valid votes, the chairman shall announce that lots will be drawn by him to decide how he shall give the casting vote in respect of these nominees.
- 2122. The chairman shall then draw lots and give the casting vote to one of the nominees in accordance with the lot drawn, and shall forthwith declare that nominee elected as deputy chairman.

# Consequential amendments to House Rules 20(d), 21(e) and 22(f)

# **20.** House Committee

(d) The procedures for the election of the chairman and deputy chairman of the House Committee are is in Appendix IV. A Mmember who nominates a an absent Mmember who is absent from the meeting when the nomination is made shall state for the office is required to state that the absent Mmember's acceptance of the nomination for office has been secured.

# 21. Bills Committees

(e) The chairman of a Bills Committee shall be elected by the committee from among its members. The committee may also elect a deputy chairman. Tenure of chairmanship and deputy chairmanship should be for the life of the Bills Committee. The procedure for the election of the chairman and deputy chairman as provided in rule 20(d) above shall also apply to Bills Committees Appendix IV. A member who nominates an absent member for an the office shall state is required to state that the absent member's acceptance of the nomination has been secured.

### 22. Panels

(f) The chairman and the deputy chairman of a Panel shall be elected from among its members and shall hold office until the election of the chairman and deputy chairman of the Panel in the session next following that for which they were elected. The procedure for the election of the chairman and deputy chairman is in Appendix IV.as provided in rule 20(d) above shall also apply to Panels. A member who nominates an absent member for an the office shall state is required to state that the absent member's acceptance of the nomination has been secured

# 香港特別行政區立法會

LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL OF THE HONG KONG SPECIAL ADMINISTRATIVE REGION

> 內務守則 House Rules

# 內務守則

# **House Rules**

至 2001 年 <u>13</u> 月 <u>1216</u> 日的修訂本 Amended to <u>12 January</u> 16 <u>March</u> 2001

# 目錄

守則約	扁號		<u>頁數</u>	
		立法會會議		
	1.	議員作宗教式或非宗教式宣誓的次序	1	
	1A.	<del>選舉</del> 立法會主席 <u>的選舉</u>	1-2	
	1B.	選擧議員主持立法會會議的程序	2	
	2.	就提交立法會 <mark>會議</mark> 省覽的附屬法例及文件發言	2	
	3.	以議員有直接金錢利益爲理由著其退席或將其表決作廢	2	
	4.	行政長官答問會	2-3	
	5.	於在立法會會議上向政府所提質詢的登記事宜	3	
	6.	質詢的形式	3-4	
	7.	質詢的數目及編配	4	
	8.	補充質詢	4-5	
	9.	跟進口頭質詢	5	
	10.	急切質詢	5	
	11.	已 <u>議員未能按原定</u> 安排在 <u>立法會</u> 會議 <del>中提出,但議員並無</del> 上提出的質詢	5	
	12.	議員提出質詢時官員不在場	5	
	13.	由議員提出的辯論數目	6	
	14.	辯論時段的編配	6-7	
	15.	議案辯論的次序	8	
	16.	在辯論 <mark>時中</mark> 缺席的議員的意見	8	
	17.	議案辯論	8-9	
	18.	休會辯論	9	
	19.	動議議案以縮短點名表決鐘聲的時間	10	
	19A.	議案的修正案	10	

# 目 錄

守則編號		<u>頁數</u>
	委員會	
20.	內務委員會	11-12
21.	法案委員會	12-15
22.	事務委員會	15-17
23.	逾期參加委員會	17
24.	舉行會議事宜的指引	18-20
25.	會議紀要	20
26.	內務委員會、法案委員會或事務委員會轄下小組 委員會	21
27.	在委員會會議後舉行的新聞簡報會	21
28.	熱帶氣旋及黑色暴雨警告生效期間的安排	21
29.	在香港進行的訪問活動	21-22
	整體聯繫活動	
30.	與政務司司長及財政司司長舉行會議	23
31.	各政策局局長就行政長官《施政報告》舉行簡報會	23
32.	與區議會舉行會議	23-24
33.	議員會晤訪港外賓	24
34.	議會聯絡小組委員會	24

# 附錄

- I. 在立法會主席及立法會代理主席缺席時 選擧議員主持立法會會議的程序
- II. 以議員有直接金錢利益爲理由動議著其 退席或將其表決作廢的議案的程序
- III. <u>要請</u>求<u>立法會</u>主席准許無經預告而提出 質詢
- IV. 選舉內務委員會主席及副主席的程序
- V. 有關就基於公眾利益而享有特權的要求 <del>的</del>作出裁定的常習及慣例

# 立法會會議

# 1. 議員作宗教式或非宗教式宣誓的次序

- (a) 議員作宗教式或非宗教式宣誓的次序按連續擔任立法會議員 的時間而定;連續擔任立法會議員時間較長的議員先作宗教 式或非宗教式宣誓。
- (b) 如有兩名或以上議員連續擔任議員的時間相同,其宣誓次序 須按議員中文姓名繁體字筆劃多少編排;姓名筆劃最少的議 員先作宗教式或非宗教式宣誓。

# 1A. 選擧立法會主席的選舉

- (a) 立法會主席由立法會議員互選產生。
- (b) 如立法會主席在立法會任期內辭去此職位,但仍然出任議員,則立法會主席的改選須最遲於接獲其辭職通知後的第三次立法會會議上擧行。在任立法會主席除非已正式離任,否則須決定改選的日期及主持選擧;如在任立法會主席已正式離任,則由立法會代理主席將決定改選的日期及主持選擧。如立法會代理主席獲提名爲候選立法會主席的選擧。則出席議員中連續擔任立法會議員時間最長者,須主持立法會主席的選擧。
- (c) 如立法會主席在立法會任期內不再擔任立法會議員,則立法 會代理主席須命令在立法會會議上進行立法會主席的改選。 是次改選須在切實可行範圍內盡早進行,而在任何情況下不 得遲於塡補因立法會主席不再擔任立法會議員而出現的空缺 的議員履任後第三次立法會會議上擧行,並由<u>在席的</u>立法會 代理主席主持。如立法會代理主席獲提名無候選立法會主席 <del>的候選人一職</del>,則出席議員中連續擔任立法會議員時間最長 者,須主持立法會主席的選舉。

(d) 選舉立法會主席的程序——載於《議事規則》附表。

# 1B. 選擧議員主持立法會會議的程序

立法會主席及立法會代理主席如在某次立法會會議上缺席,或認 爲不能執行主席職務,則出席會議的議員須按<u>附錄 I</u>所載程序互 選一名議員主持該次會議。

# 2. 就提交立法會會議省覽的附屬法例及文件發言

倘議員<mark>擬要請</mark>求立法會主席准許其根據《議事規則》第 21(3)及(5) 條就提交立法會會議省覽的附屬法例或文件向立法會發言,該議員應在會議前提交其預備擬發表的演辭,以便立法會主席<del>就決定</del> 該演辭是否可能引發《議事規則》第 21(6)條所不容的辯論<del>作出決</del> 定。

# 3. 以議員有直接金錢利益為理由著其退席或將其表決作廢

- (a) 以某議員有直接金錢利益爲理由而著其退席的議案,可無經預告由任何議員在立法會主席或全體委員會主席提出原議案的待決議題後,及在議員進行表決前動議。動議議員退席的議案的程序載於附錄 II。
- (b) 以某議員有直接金錢利益爲理由將其表決作廢的議案,可無經預告由任何議員在立法會主席、全體委員會主席、委員會主席或小組委員會主席說出按其判斷原議案是否獲得所需的過半數票後,立即動議;如有命令進行點名表決,有關議案可在立法會主席、全體委員會主席、委員會主席或小組委員會主席說出點名表決所記錄的有關議員數目後,立即動議。動議將議員的表決作廢的議案的程序亦載於附錄 II。

# 4. 行政長官答問會

(a) 行政長官<u>可</u>酌情<u>决定</u>出席立法會會議<u>,</u>就政府的工作答覆議 員向其提出的質詢→。答問會每次爲時約一小時。

- (b) 議員在答問會上可向行政長官提出的質詢,一般限於已事先 知會議員的特定事項。
- (c) 在答問會上,在立法會當屆任期內過往各次答問會上發問次 數最少的議員可優先提出質詢一。如有議員的優先質詢次序 與其他議員相同,立法會主席可<del>行使其</del>酌情權一決定首先叫 喚哪位議員。
- (d) 提出質詢的議員可就其質詢提出一項簡短的補充質詢。就計算質詢次數而言,議員就其原有質詢提出的補充質詢,不會算作一項額外質詢,但其他議員提出的補充質詢,則當作一項質詢計算。

# 5. 於在立法會會議上向政府所提質詢的登記事宜

- (a) 立法會秘書處根據接獲質詢的先後次序,將質詢予以登記。
- (b) 每名議員每周只限登記一項口頭質詢及一項書面質詢,或兩項書面質詢,每周截算質詢登記的時間爲星期五午夜 12 時。當遞交質詢以作登記時,<del>所提供的質詢措辭初稿必須<u>議員應</u>提供足以說明質詢的主題及範圍的質詢措辭初稿。</del>
- (c) 倘有兩名或<del>更多以上</del>議員<del>擬提出遞交了內容</del>相似<del>內容</del>的質 詢,有關議員應嘗試就由哪位議員提出質詢達成協議<u>一;</u>若 未能達成協議,則由獲編配較早時段的議員提出質詢。

# 6. 質詢的形式

- (a) 質詢措辭應精確切題。
- (b) 應避免在一項口頭質詢內附帶提出多項質詢,否則該項質詢 或會被裁定爲不合乎規程。
- (c) 應避免提出需<u>須</u>進行<u>非常</u>廣泛<u>的</u>資料<mark>蒐搜</mark>集工作始能作答的 質詢,例如<del>有關的</del>要就一段很長的期間搜集</u>數據<del>涉及過長的</del> 時期。如有需要,要求<u>提供</u>統計數字的質詢一較宜以書面形 式提出<del>較爲恰當</del>。

(d) 不應就過於廣泛的政策事宜提出質詢,以免不能一次過<del>給予</del> 作出答覆。

# 7. 質詢的數目及編配

- (a) 會議上若不會就不擬具立法效力的議案進行辯論,可提出的 口頭質詢不得多於 10 項。如立法會主席認為某次會議上將領 會就不擬具立法效力的議案進行辯論,可提出的口頭質詢不 得多於 6 項,而時限通常爲一小時至一個半小時,視乎該次 會議的 議程而定。若有 10 項口頭質詢在會議上提出,質詢時 限爲兩個半小時。
- (b) 根據《議事規則》第 24(3)條,在任何一次立法會會議中,每 名議員通常只限提出一項口頭質詢及一項書面質詢,或兩項 書面質詢。但如有 20 名或更多議員擬於一次會議上提出質 詢,則每名議員只限提出一項質詢。
- (c) 編配在會議上所提出的質詢的準則,通常是以根據各項質詢在秘書處登記的先後次序作爲根據編配。若無法將議員擬提出的所有質詢編配在同一次會議,在符合上文(b)段的規定下,在同一會期內分別獲編配提出口頭質詢或書面質詢次數最少的議員,將可較其他議員優先提出質詢。
- (d) 若經內務委員會同意,議員可<mark>獲編配</mark>優先<del>次序</del>提出質詢。內 務委員會<u>在就此</u>作出決定時,會考慮質詢的內容是否<u>與</u>時事 <del>項目有關、當中所涉事項</del>是否<del>備受市民公聚</del>關注<u>的事項,以</u> 及<u>該等質詢的</u>性質是否急切。
- (e) 立法會在會議上辯論撥款法案和<del>政府《</del>施政報告<del>》</del>時,不會 安排議員向政府提出口頭質詢。

# 8. 補充質詢

- (a) 在立法會會議上提出質詢的議員,通常可就該項質詢提出第 一項補充質詢。
- (b) 補充質詢應簡短切題。

- (c) 每項補充質詢不應包含多於一項質詢。
- (d) 補充質詢應以質詢形式提出,<mark>當中</mark>不應<mark>載有包含</mark>陳述<u>一或</u>推 論、隱含答案,或要求證實傳言或報章的報道。

# 9. 跟進口頭質詢

議員倘認爲其質詢未完全獲得全面答覆,應就會議規程問題起一立,並說:"主席,請批准提出跟進質詢。"然後由立法會主席決定是否批准提出跟進質詢。就釐定質詢次序而言,跟進質詢並不視作補充質詢。

# 10. 急切質詢

議員若未有給予要求無經所需的預告而要求提出急切質詢,應在 切實可行情況下,範圍內</u>先徵得內務委員會同意,然後才向立法 會秘書提交急切質詢,並附上一份聲明,載列提出該項要求的理 由,以協助立法會主席考慮是否接納其要求 — 。聲明樣本載於<u>附</u> 錄 III。

# 11. <del>已<u>議員未能按原定</u>安排在<u>立法會</u>會議中提出,但議員並無上</u>提出 的質詢</del>

根據《議事規則》第 26(6)條,若議員不能在席提出其口頭質詢,則該質詢經其事先同意可由另一名議員提出,否則該質詢須作爲要求書面答覆的質詢處理。就質詢輪候制度而言,該缺席的議員將視作已提出一項要求口頭答覆的質詢。

# 12. 議員提出質詢時官員不在場

若官員未能及時到場答覆質詢,立法會主席可行使其酌情權,將 該質詢押後至質詢時間末段。

# 13. 由議員提出的辯論數目

- (a) 立法會每次例會不應舉行超過兩項由議員提出的辯論,該等辯論可以是兩項議案辯論、兩項休會辯論,或一項議案辯論及一項休會辯論。然而,在特殊情況下,立法會主席可按內務委員會的建議,准許在立法會例會上提出超過兩項該等辯論。
- (b) 上文(a)段所述的辯論不包括就下列各類議案進行的辯論——
  - (i) 特定議案(《議事規則》JA部);
  - (ii) 有關法案的議案(《議事規則》K部);
  - (iii) 有關委任專責委員會及向專責委員會交付事宜的議案 (《議事規則》第78及79條);
  - (iv) 有關修訂或暫停執行《議事規則》的議案;
  - (v) 根據某條例動議的議案[【例如→《釋義及通則條例》第 34 或 35 條(有關立法會在附屬法例方面的權力)】]; 及
  - (vi) 任何其他議案,倘獲得通過,<mark>可授會賦</mark>權立法會、某委 員會、立法會主席或其他人士作出某些作爲者,或援<mark>引</mark> 用法例或《議事規則》的某些條文者。

### 14. 辯論時段的編配

- (a) 每名議員通常在每一會期內只會獲編配一個時段,以動議一項議案辯論或提出一項休會辯論。
- (b) 議員若擬在某次立法會會議<u>上</u>動議<u>議案</u>辯論,須預先申請編 配辯論時段。某次會議辯論時段的申請應連同議案措辭,須 不遲於該次會議<del>舉行</del>日期前 14 整天提交秘書處。
- (c) 秘書處在上文(b)段所載截止日期過後不會接受任何申請,即 使當時還有時段尚未編配。如有多於一位議員提交的擬議議 案的主題實質相同,首位獲編配辯論時段的議員可優先動議 辯論有關主題。

- (d) 在上文(b)段所載截止日期時,同一次立法會會議的辯論時段 如有多於兩項申請,內務委員會主席會抽籤決定時段的編 配。在會期內曾獲編配辯論時段的議員不包括在抽籤之列。
- (e) 在會期內從未獲編配辯論時段並曾在兩次或以上抽籤中連續 失利<mark>期次</mark>數最多的議員,將獲優先編配一個在隨後一次立法 會會議的辯論時段。如情況相同的議員不只一位,內務委員 會主席會抽籤決定其中一位可獲編配該時段。仍未被抽中的 議員的申請其後會連同那些失利<u>期次</u>數較少的議員及其他在 會期內從未獲編配辯論時段的議員的申請,由內務委員會主 席抽籤決定是否獲編配餘下的一個辯論時段。
- (f) 倘獲內務委員會同意,議員可不按上述編配辦法獲優先編配 時段,以便就急切→和重要的事項以及時事問題進行辯論。
- (g) 經預告的議案在動議之前,可隨時由議案動議人指示立法會 秘書將其撤回。<del>但若除非</del>議案是在作出議案預告的期限期前 (即會議<del>舉行</del>日期前12 整天前)之後才撤回,<u>否則</u>有關議員會 被當作曾獲編配辯論時段。
- (h) 議案動議人如在<u>立法會</u>會議期間撤回議案,該辯論時段<del>可</del><u>將</u> 按下列其中一種方<del>法式</del>處理 ——
  - (i) 有關議員被視作已使用該辯論時段;或
  - (ii) 有關議員倘獲內務委員會同意,可在隨後一次<del>最先有辯論時段可供編配的立法會</del>會議上<u>首個可供編配的時段</u>動議<u>已</u>撤回的議案,惟在該次<u>立法會</u>會議上進行的議案辯論不得因此而多於兩項。
- (i) 若內務委員會曾事先向<mark>議案</mark>動議人建議押後進行議案辯論, 而有關動議人<del>亦</del>接納建議,<del>則</del>該辯論時段將按上文(h)(ii)段<del>的</del> 所述方法式處理。若有關動議人不接納建議,並而在立法會 會議期間才撤回議案,該辯論時段將按上文(h)(i)段<del>的</del>所述 法式處理。

# 15. 議案辯論的次序

- (a) 上文守則第 13(b)(i)至(v)條所列的議案辯論應首先進行辯論,然後才就個別議員動議的議案進行辯論。
- (b) 在同一次立法會會議上,若安排就兩名議員分別動議的議案 進行辯論,除非該兩名議員同意另作安排已商定辯論該等議 案的先後次序,否則會抽籤決定辯論該等議案辯論的先後次 序。

# 16. 在辯論時中缺席的議員的意見

議員若有意參與某項辯論但未能出席進行該辯論的立法會會議,可請一名會在辯論中發言的議員代其表達意見。答允在辯論中代某名缺席議員表達意見的議員,在發言時應先行表達其個人意見,然後才說明該名缺席議員與其亦有相同意見相同。發言的議員不應宣讀由缺席議員預撰的演辭,亦不應在總述缺席議員的意見後,簡要地而最後只表示自己亦贊同該等意見。

# 17. 議案辯論

(a) 就議案及議案修正案作出正式預告的最<mark>起碼短預告</mark>期<mark>限</mark>如下

規定的最少短預告期

《議事規則》

議案的預告 議案修正案的預告 修正某議案的 修正案的預告 12 整天 5 整天 3 整天,並由立法會 主席酌情決定

第 29(1)條 第 29(6)(a)條 (b) 除非內務委員會另有決定,否則<u>撥供進行下列的議案</u>辯論<del>的</del>發言時<del>間通常作如下分配</del>限須當作已獲內務委員會同意,並 須根據《議事規則》第 37 條向立法會主席建議予以採納——

發言時間上限

議案動議人

一 動議議案發言及答辯

15 分鐘(總<del>時間</del>計)

一 就擬議修正案發言

5 分鐘(總<del>時間</del>計)

議案修正案動議人

10 分鐘

修正某議案的修正案動議人

7分鐘

發言的其他議員

每人7分鐘

獲准重訂其<u>原有的</u>擬議修正案<del>的</del>措辭 · 以 修正某項<del>於</del>較早時經修正的議案的議員 另加3分鐘

(c) 倘議員動議<u>將議案辯論中止待續的</u>議案,<del>以押後議案辯論、</del> 而內務委員會已根據《議事規則》第 37 條向立法會主席作出 建議,則就該議案發言的議員,每人發言的時間不得超過立 法會主席所接納的<u>建議</u>指定時限,而議員應就該議案(而非原 議案)發言。

# 18. 休會辯論

- (a) 在申請進行休會辯論時,必須具體說明辯論的主題及範圍。 提出休會辯論的議員其後不得要求更改辯論的主題。
- (b) 除非立法會主席延長辯論時間,否則每次立法會會議的休會 辯論會以一小時爲限(45 分鐘供議員發言,15 分鐘供政府官 員作答辯)。

# 19. 動議議案以縮短點名表決鐘聲的時間

- (a) 若預期在某次立法會會議上需經常進行點名表決,內務委員會可決定是否動議議案,藉以把就該次會議上某些事項進行 的點名表決的響鐘時間縮短至一分鐘。倘此議案獲內務委員會同意,內務委員會主席會代表議員動議該議案。
- (b) 個別議員若有意動議<mark>該等上述</mark>議案,應預先通知內務委員 會,以免立法會在議員動議該議案時須就此進行辯論。

# 19A.議案的修正案

- (a) 議員可作出預告就議案或法案提出相同修正案,但須符合《議事規則》第 29(6)及 57(2)條所訂的適用預告規定。
- (b) 若有超過一位議員就相同修正案作出預告,有關修正案會載 於作出修正案預告的議員名單之下發出,而名單上議員會按 照立法會秘書接獲其修正案預告的先後次序排列。
- (c) 名單上的首位議員須被叫喚動議有關修正案。如該議員已撤回修正案預告或決定不動議修正案,名單上的下一位議員將被叫喚動議有關修正案;如該議員亦已撤回修正案預告或決定不動議修正案,下一位議員將被叫喚,直至名單上的最後一位議員爲止。

# 委員會

# 20. 內務委員會

- (a) 內務委員會的正副主席須在公開會議中由<mark>議該委員會的委</mark>員 互選產生,任期直至委員會在<u>其他們</u>獲選後的下一會期選出 正副主席爲止。
- (b) 新一屆立法會首個會期的選舉須在委員會於該會期內舉行的 首次會議上進行。內務委員會在每屆任期的首次會議,由立 法會議員中排名最先<del>的立法會議員</del>者負責召開。
- (c) 至於每屆任期第二個或其後各個會期的選舉,可在該會期開始前舉行的會議上進行。是次會議須由在任的內務委員會主席召開。若選舉前在任的委員會正副主席均獲提名委員會候選主席一職,出席議委員中排名最先者須主持選舉。
- (d) 選舉內務委員會正副主席的程序,載於<u>附錄 IV。議委</u>員倘提 名缺席的議查員爲候選主席或副主席一職,必須表明已確實 獲得該名缺席議查員接受提名。
- (e) 立法會會期內,內務委員會通常在每個星期五下午 2 時 30 分舉行會議。遇有財務委員會會議安排於同一下午較早時間舉行,內務委員會會議將於下午 4 時 30 分開始。其他委員會如需在星期五下午舉行會議,應安排在內務委員會會議結束後舉行。秘書處會發出書面預告通知議委員有關會議的日期、時間及地點。
- (f) 提出每次會議議程項目的<mark>期限期通常</mark>為該次會議舉行前的星期二下午 5 時。議委員如欲在截止期限期後提出急切議程項目,可向內務委員會主席提出要求,以便於會議上在"其他事項"下加以討論。主席須決定是否批准該項要求。

- (g) 內務委員會<mark>將參考會考慮政府</mark>當局提供的資料、法律顧問的 意見、法案委員會的數目<del>,以</del>及法案的急切程度等,決定是 否成立法案委員會,以及法案委員會展開工作的先後次序。 當某法案已準備就緒,可在立法會恢復二讀辯論時,內務委 員會主席會安排知會負責該法案的議員或官員。
- (h) 並非所有法案均<del>需交付</del>須成立</u>法案委員會<u>進行</u>研究。內務委 | 員會可以 ——
  - (i) 在審閱法律顧問就法案所涉及的法律範疇提交的報告 (及在有需要時<u>進一步</u>提交的<del>進一步</del>報告)後,通過支持恢 復對法案進行二讀辯論;或
  - (ii) 因應個別<mark>議委</mark>員所提出索取資料或請要</u>求就法案若干方面加以提供資料或作出澄清的要求,向法律顧問或秘書處其他有關的職員發出指示,請其由他們與政府當局商討該等問題,以及然後向有關的議委員及內務委員會進一步提交關於該法案的進一步報告。
- (i) 內務委員會<mark>建議將予就須</mark>設立的事務委員會數目、名稱及職權範圍<u>提出建議</u>。委員會亦可將<del>涉及與</del>立法會事務<u>有關</u>的任何政策事宜交付<u>有相</u>關的事務委員會研究,並可<del>就與事務委員會職權範圍有關的事宜,</del>要求事務委員會<del>向內務委員會就</del>與其職權範圍有關的事宜提交報告和聽取有關報告。
- (j) 內務委員會可委任小組委員會, <mark>以便</mark>協助研究某些特定附屬 法例及不屬事務委員會職權範圍而備受公眾關注的事項。

# 21. 法案委員會

- (a) 法案委員會及內務委員會轄下研究附屬法例的小組委員會一在同一期時間內運作的數目最多應只限無 16個。限額中有一特定名額撥予研究附屬法例的小組委員會。儘管在同一期時間內運作的法案委員會數目限最多為 15個,但若有充分理由確有需要,則可有超過一個小組委員會在同一時間運作。 遇有多於當成立的法案委員會數目超過 15個法案委員會成立,輪候制度便會自動開始實施。
- (b) 每一法案委員會須由不少於 3 名委員組成,其中包括主席在 內。

- (c) 當內務委員會在其會議席上將某法案交付法案委員會時,議員可於席上以舉手方式表示參加該法案委員會,而該等議員中排名最先者,負責召開法案委員會的首次會議。議員亦可於該法案委員會的秘書所訂的既定限期內,將回條交回秘書處,以示參加法案委員會。除特別情況外,該限期通常定於爲法案委員會首次會議日期的一整天前。
- (d) 在<del>立法會某一</del>會期開始後才加入立法會的議員,應在其被宣布當選爲立法會議員之日起計的一個月內,表明擬加入哪些法案委員會。
- (e) 法案委員會的主席須由該委員會的委員互選產生。該委員會亦可選舉出一名副主席。正副主席的任期<del>應與該至法案</del>委員會<del>的結束運作期相同為止。上文守則第 20(d)條所規定選</del>舉正副主席的程序<del>亦適用於法案委員會載於附錄 IV</del>。委員倘提名缺席的委員<del>出任某一候選主席或副主席一</del>職<del>位</del>,必須表明已確實獲得該名缺席委員接受提名。
- (f) 輪候名單上的法案委員會按有關法案提交立法會的先後次序 排列。在<mark>答應政府</mark>當局<del>所提出的要求讓</del>研究某政府法案的法 案委員會優先展開工作<del>的要求</del>時,研究議員法案的法案委員 會次序不應因此而受到影響。同一道理,若某議員法案<del>需</del>須 較其他法案</u>優先處理,政府法案的次序亦不應改變。某法案 的性質急切與否,須由內務委員會決定。
- (g) 某法案委員會倘決定暫時擱置法案的研究工作(可藉傳閱文件方式·要求委員作出此項決定,並以書面示<del>意明</del>),便應通知會內務委員會,並由內務委員會決定輪候中的下一個法案委員會應否展開工作。至於<del>工作被</del>暫時擱置<u>工作</u>的法案委員會,通常須待另有名額騰空時,方可重新<del>進行</del>展開</u>其研究工作。
- (h) 法案的研究工作應從速進行,並盡可能在展開工作後 3 個月 內完成。若法案委員會需要較多時間進行研究,則該委員會 的主席應向內務委員會報告,要求將期限延長。

- (i) 處理法案的工作應按下述指引進行 ——
  - (i) 在可行情況下,委員會應經常舉行會議;
  - (ii) 委員會的委員應盡量出席所有會議,並避免提早退席;
  - (iii) <del>不應對</del>已<del>全面研<u>充分商</u>議的事項<u>不應</u>重新展開討論;</del>
  - (iv) 主席應密切監察所負責的法案的研究進度。若需暫時擱置某法案的研究工作,應向內務委員會提交報告;
  - (v) 當某法案的研究工作已達提交報告的階段,在法律顧問 及有關委員會建議下,內務委員會可決定將名額騰空, 讓以便展開輪候中的下一條法案展開的研究工作。
- (j) 法案委員會在完成研究所獲交付的法案後,須盡快通知內務 委員會及以書面知會該委員會法案委員會商議的結果,並在 有需要時說明其多數委員及少數委員的意見,以及法案委員 會是否支持該法案。法案委員會其後須再向立法會作出報 告。
- (k) 凡法案委員會主席或任何委員<del>向立法會</del>就法案委員會的工作 <u>向立法會</u>作出報告,應在有關法案恢復二讀辯論時向立法會 發言。作出報告的法案委員會主席或委員獲立法會主席許可 後,可在<mark>該</mark>辯論中首先發言,無須限時而不受 15 分鐘的發言 時限所規限。
- (1) 倘法案委員會決定向立法會提交書面報告,該報告須在有關 法案<del>進行恢復</del>二讀辯論的同一次會議上提交<del>,</del>而提交<mark>該報 告的法案委員會主席或委員須在辯論開始之時,就該報告向 立法會發言。</mark>
- (m) 若無跡象顯示某法案將在有關的法案委員會完成工作後的一段合理時間內恢復二讀辯論,而法案委員會倘有此決定,法案委員會主席或代表法案委員會的任何委員須向立法會提交書面報告,並根據《議事規則》第 21(3)條請求立法會主席批准其就該報告向立法會發言。

(n) 在<u>經法案委員會研究的法案一旦獲</u>立法會通過<del>法案</del>,或內務 委員會決定解散有關的法案委員會時,該法案委員會即告解 散。

# 22. 事務委員會

- (a) <del>內務委員會建議</del>事務委員會的數目、名稱及職權範圍<u>由內務</u> 委員會建議,再交立法會通過。
- (b) 每一事務委員會須由不少於 6 名委員組成,其中包括主席在 內。議員可於該事務委員會在立法會會期內召開首次會議 前,在既定的限期內將回條交回秘書處,以示參加。事務委 員會委員的身份,在事務委員會隨立法會解散而告解散之時 終止。
- (c) 議員在會期內若不欲繼續留任事務委員會委員,則可請辭。
- (c) 議員可在緊隨新一屆任期首次立法會會議之後的星期六正午 或該限期前,將回條交回秘書處,以示加入某事務委員會。 除非議員退出某事務委員會,否則其事務委員會委員的身份 至整屆任期結束時終止。就應屆任期餘下各個會期而言,議 員如擬加入已參加的事務委員會以外的其他事務委員會,可 在緊接有關會期首次立法會會議之前的星期六正午或該限期 前,將回條交回秘書處,以示參加;將回條交回秘書處的限 期,須視爲有關議員作爲上述其他事務委員會委員的身份開 始生效的時間。
- (d) 在<del>立法會某一</del>會期開始後才加入立法會的議員<del>,應可</del>在<del>其被</del>宣布其當選爲立法會議員之日起計的一個月內,<del>表明擬將回條交回秘書處,以示</del>加入<del>哪些某</del>事務委員會。<u>有關議員的事</u>務委員會委員身份由秘書處接獲其回條之時開始生效。
- (e) 在立法會每屆任期的首個會期內,事務委員會的首次會議 由已加入事務委員會的<u>立法會</u>議員中排名最先<del>的立法會議員</del> 者負責召開,以便選舉出事務委員會的主席。其後所有會議 均由在任的主席召開。
- (f) 每一事務委員會的正副主席須由該事務委員會的委員互選產生,其任期直至事務委員會在其他們獲選後的下一會期選出正副主席為止。上文守則第 20(d)條所規定選舉正副主席的程序亦適用於事務委員會載於附錄 IV。委員倘提名缺席的委員出任某一候選主席或副主席一職位,必須表明已確實獲得該名缺席委員接受提名。
- (g) 一般而言,事務委員會正副主席的選舉應在會期內首次舉行的事務委員會會議上進行。

- (h) 凡出任事務委員會認爲與其職權範圍直接相關的政府諮詢團 體的主席或副主席的議員,不得成爲該事務委員會的正副主 席。
- (i) 每名議員不得同時<del>出</del>兼任多於一個事務委員會的主席或副主席<u>職務</u>。
- (j) 如主席及副主席暫時缺席,事務委員會可在<mark>該段他們</mark>缺席期間另選一委員代行主席之職。
- (k) 當某一事務委員會與任何其他事務委員會舉行聯席會議,以 研究共同關注的事宜時,有關的事務委員會須決定<u>該次會議</u> 應由當中哪一<del>位個事務委員會的</del>主席主持<del>該次會議。</del>
- (1) <del>倘</del>若兩個事務委員會的主席無法就如何處理同時涉及該兩個事務委員會工作範圍的事項取得一致意見,應諮詢內務委員會主席,或當主席缺席時,徵詢副主席的意見,以決定應否由其中一個事務委員會著手處理有關事項,或該兩個<del>有關的事務</del>委員會應否舉行聯席會議。
- (m) 若有超過兩個事務委員會就一項共同關注的某項議題舉行聯席會議,如有需要可諮詢內務委員會主席,或當主席缺席時,徵詢副主席的意見,以決定應否由對該議題最感關注的事務委員會召開會議,並邀請亦其他關注該議題的其他事務委員會的委員列出席,又或應否為所有關注該議題的所有議員安排學行非正式簡報會。倘若後一項建議獲得採納後一種做法,與出席簡報會的議員應互選召集人,而在簡報會開始時,議員應獲提醒,他們在該等簡報會上不會受到《立法局(權力及特權)條例》保障,與議員在事務委員會會議中受到該條例保障的情況不同。
- (n) 關於就計算聯席會議的會議法定人數而言,在一次聯席會議上一同時隸屬兩個事務委員會的議員,應被視無算作聯席會議的其中一名委員。會議法定人數將是包括主席在內的為聯席會議的委員總人數的三分之一(整數後的分數不計),包括主席在內。換言之,就委員人數及會議法定人數而言,每名議員只會被點算一次。
- (o) 在所有須由事務委員會聯席會議中,出席的委員進行表決時,會以過半數的意見作決定的事宜,須以參與表決的委員 實成者及反對者的過半數決定。不同各有關事務委員會的委員所表達的反對不同意見,均應予以記錄在案。
- (p) 在事務委員會會議中,如<mark>議委</mark>員擬提出議案,在事務委員會主席認爲該議案與該次會議的議程項目直接相關而予以批准後,有關<del>議委</del>員可提出該議案;若過半數<del>出席會議參與表決</del>的<del>事務委員會</del>委員同意,即可處理該議案。<del>議委</del>員擬提出的任何議案或議案修正案應以書面形式提交事務委員會。

# (g) 在立法會解散後,所有事務委員會即告解散。

- (fq) 凡屬重要及/或可能引起爭議的立法或財務建議,在提交立 法會或財務委員會前,應先諮詢有關的事務委員會。倘未諮 詢有關的事務委員會,內務委員會或財務委員會應須決定是 否把該建議交付有關的事務委員會研究。
- (sr) 事務委員會通常不應處理立法會申訴制度之下的個別個案, 但可研究該等個案所涉及的政策事宜。
- (ts) 事務委員會可成立小組委員會, <mark>以負責</mark>研究特定事宜及向事務委員會<mark>提交作出</mark>報告。小組委員會的委員應來自該事務委員會。
- (<u>Ht</u>) 倘事務委員會認爲需以立法會轄下事務委員會的名義在香港以外的地方進行任何活動,須先<u>獲得徵求</u>內務委員會<del>允許</del>批 <u>准</u>。內務委員會的決定須提交立法會行政管理委員會參考。
- (YII) 事務委員會須在會期內向立法會最少提交一次工作報告。如事務委員會獲委以研究個別某項特定事宜,或獲授權傳召有關人士出席作證或和提供證據,該事務委員會須在完成研究工作後一向立法會提交報告。提交報告的方式載於守則第 2條。如有需要,事務委員會亦可按其需要就個別特定事宜內務委員會徵詢內務委員會的意見,或告知會內務委員會有關其研究報告的內容。

# 23. 逾期參加委員會

- (a) 若議員以當時身體不適或不在本港爲理由,在限期過後才申請參加任何法案委員會、事務委員會、法案委員會或事務委員會轄下的小組委員會,或研究附屬法例的小組委員會,其申請獲接納與否,須由有關委員會主席決定。
- (b) 議員以(a)段所訂者以外的理由在限期過後才提出申請參加委員會的要求,須向有關委員會提出其要求。只有在議員提出充分理由的情況下,委員會方可才會接納此等申請。在委員會選出主席及副主席之後才加入該委員會的任何委議員,不得要求重選主席及副主席。
- (c) 任何議員如其申請在(a)或(b)段所述情況下遭拒絕,可要求內 務委員會就此事作出決定。

#### 24. 舉行會議事宜的指引

(a) 在一般情況下,應按以下時段編定會議,每<del>次爲時</del>個時段爲 兩小時<u>:</u>

> 上午 8 時 30 分至上午 10 時 30 分 上午 10 時 45 分至下午 12 時 45 分 下午 2 時 30 分至下午 4 時 30 分 下午 4 時 30 分至下午 6 時 30 分

**-{!**一般而言,星期六下午、星期日及公眾假期不會安排會議。**}!** │

- (b) 為使議員<del>可出席所能參與其</del>加入的委員會(<u>指包括</u>常設委員會、事務委員會、法案委員會、小組委員會及專責委員會等等)的所有會議,應<u>在切實可行範圍內</u>盡量避免編排兩個會議在同一時段內擧行。
- (c) 委員會的會議預告須以書面作出,說明舉行會議的日期、時間及地點;每次會議的書面預告,<del>必</del>須由<u>委員會</u>秘書於會議日期最少 3 天前發給各委員,但主席可視個別情況指示<del>給予</del>作出較短時間的預告。
- (d) 所有立法會議員,不論是否有關的委員會的委員,均可出席該委員會的會議,其意見可獲收錄於有關的委員會會議紀要內。出席委員會會議的非委員會議員<u>若非該委員會的委員</u>, 在該委員會的事務上沒有投票或表決權。
- (e) 委員會秘書須在會議前盡早發出會議議程及與席上考慮事項 有關的文件。
- (f) 在會議前,委員應將覆實是否出席會議的回條交回委員會秘書,否則委員會秘書在會議前計算出席者是否達到會議法定人數時,會假定未有交回回條的委員會被視爲將會缺席者。 凡參加會議的委員,均應準時出席會議一;若未能準時抵達會到場的委員,應盡早通知秘書處。
- (g) 除非在指定開會時間起計 15 分鐘內, 出席會議的委員達到會議法定人數, 否則會議不會舉行。
- (h) 在委員會會議進行時,如出席會議的委員不足法定人數,而 有人向委員會主席提出此事,委員會主席即須指示傳召委員 到場。15 分鐘後,如仍不足法定人數,委員會主席即無須付 諸表決而<del>官布休會待續結</del>束會議。

- (i) <u>在</u>委員會會議進行時,如需<u>作命令進行</u>點名表決,委員會主 席須先確定出席會議的<u>人數委員</u>達<u>至到</u>法定人數,才進行點 名表決。
- (j) <del>委員會主席將</del>在<u>委員會</u>首次會議<u>時上</u>,<u>委員會主席會</u>預計日後所需的開會次數,並訂出該等會議的暫定日期,以便委員可即時存記其後的開會議日期,方便預留時間出席會議。在通常一般情況下,每個委員會不應一次過預訂超過3個時段。惟事務委員會可於其首次會議上,訂出其在會期內各次會議的暫定日期。
- (k) <u>委員會</u>主席<u>將盡可能會在切實可行範圍內,盡量</u>事先決定每次會議各議項可進行討論的時限,並會事先預早知會所有參加與會者÷。會上<u>將按所訂時限</u>進行討論時,須顧及已訂定的時限。應邀列出席會議的外界人士亦會預先獲通知所訂的討論時限,以方便各有關人士事先策劃各方作出部署。
- (1) 除非獲得<mark>該委</mark>員會<u>批</u>准<del>許</del>, <u>否則</u>委員會<u>已</u>決定的事項<del>將</del>不會 應重新<del>提出展開</del>討論。
- (m) 在有需要時,<u>委員會</u>主席應提醒議員、政府官員及<u>團體</u>代表 <del>團成員</del>在委員會會議上發言時<del>盡量</del>避免中英語夾雜,以方便 即時傳譯員工作。
- (n) <u>委員會</u>倘根據《議事規則》第80條傳召有關人士出席<del>委員會</del>作證<del>或</del>租提供證據,<del>則委員會</del>應參<del>考照</del>先前個案所採用的程序,以決定處理當前個案的程序。<u>附錄 V 列明對於就</u>任何人士應訊出席立法會某轄下委員會會議時所提出有關"基於公眾利益而享有特權"的要求一作出決裁定的常習及慣例及行事方式。
- (o) 會議場地若可容納<u>旁聽者</u>,除非《議事規則》另有<u>訂明規定</u>, 否則<u>領准許</u>公眾人士<u>列席得准進入會場</u>旁聽委員會所有公開 會議,惟<u>該等人士</u>須遵守<del>立法會有關規管</del>旁聽會議<del>的</del>人士<del>及</del> 其的行爲的行政指令<del>的</del>中各項規定。<del>倘</del>若決定<del>進學</del>行閉門會 議,則應盡可能<del>提早給予事</del>先作出預告。
- (p) 關於公開舉行的會議,
  - (i) 秘書處會向旁聽會議的新聞界/公眾人士提供該次會議的議程及有關文件,但就提供文件而言,必須獲得文件撰寫人的同意。
  - (ii) 若屬內務委員會的會議,則只會向旁聽會議的新聞界/ 公眾人士提供該次會議的議程。

- (q) 委員會舉行會議期間,<del>倘</del>若主席察覺某公眾人士行爲不檢或 相當可能有不檢行爲,則主席有權徵<mark>詢求</mark>委員會同意<del>,命令</del> 將該人士<u>驅</u>離開會場,或在急切情況下,命令將該人士驅離 會場。
- (r) 主席可在委員會同意下,在若干程度上靈活應用上述指引。

#### 25. 會議紀要

- (a) 委員會秘書須按委員會決定的方式<mark>製擬</mark>備<mark>委員會</mark>會議紀要。 在一般情況下,秘書處不會爲委員會的會議過程製備逐字記 錄本,但<del>引用</del>根據《議事規則》第80條<del>而</del>進行的研訊除外。
- (b) 至於與公眾人士會晤以聽取其意見的會議,則會要求有關人士盡可能在會議前提交意見書,否則亦會在會議完結時請他們用書面載述其希望議員注意的要點。會議結束後,曾於至於在會前曾提交意見書的人士,在會後亦有機會以書面補述其意見書未有提及的事項。其後,該等書面意見將其後會送交委員參閱。
- (c) 在一般情況下,與<u>政府</u>當局及外界人士擧行會議的會議紀要<del>,將毋</del>無須送交<u>政府</u>當局及<u>有關的</u>外界人士核正。
- (d) 雖然<mark>有</mark>上文(b)及(c)段<mark>的已作出</mark>規定,<u>但</u>委員會主席倘認爲將 會議紀要或其中任何部分送交曾與議員開會的人士<u>參</u>閱<del>覽將</del> 會有助<del>於</del>委員會的工作,則可酌情<del>作出</del>決定<u>採取此做法</u>。
- (e) 每次會議<u>的</u>紀要<u>的擬本須稿會</u>在隨後<u>的一次</u>會議上<u>確認</u>通過 作實,或於會議後送交各委員<del>考慮審閱</del>,如各委員在<u>指定</u>限 期前<del>不未有對會議紀要擬稿</del>作任何修訂,該擬<del>本稿</del>即<del>可</del>視爲 獲得確認通過。
- (f) 委員會所有會議<del>將全部</del>均會 錄音÷。除非有關委員會另有指 示,否則錄音可於一年後抹掉。
- (g) 公開舉行<mark>的</mark>會議<del>,其的</del>會議紀要<del>會</del>存放於立法會圖書館或秘書處,<del>以</del>供<del>市民</del>公眾人士查閱。

#### 26. 內務委員會、法案委員會或事務委員會轄下小組委員會

在適當情況下,守則第 20 至 25 條所載的行事方式及程序,將適用於<del>隸屬</del>內務委員會、法案委員會或事務委員會之<u>轄</u>下的小組委員會。

#### 27. 在委員會會議後擧行的新聞簡報會

- (a) 一般而言,秘書處不會爲公開擧行的會議安排新聞簡報會。 至於閉門會議,<del>倘</del>若個別委員會決定在會議後擧行新聞簡報 會,可由主席聯同其他委員進行簡報。在擧行簡報會前,主 席應盡量與出席委員會會議的委員商定將會發表的簡報內 容。
- (b) 秘書處會安排舉行新聞簡報會的地點。在簡報會進行期間, 新聞界可自由發問、拍照或錄影。

#### 28. 熱帶氣旋及黑色暴雨警告生效期間的安排

- (a) 當懸掛 1 號戒備信號或 3 號強風信號,或當黃色或紅色暴雨 警告生效時,所有會議將繼續如期舉行。
- (b) <del>倘</del>若 8 號暴風信號或黑色暴雨警告在會議的原定時間兩小時前懸掛及/或仍然有效,則除非有關會議的主席另有指示,否則所有會議將予取消。<del>倘</del>若 8 號暴風信號在委員會<u>或小組委員會</u>主席 <u>委員會</u>會議進行期間懸掛,有關的委員會<u>或小組委員會</u>主席 應結束該次會議。倘爲黑色暴雨警告,則<del>有關的委員會</del>主席 應決定結束會議<del>或</del>還是繼續擧行會議。

#### 29. 在香港進行的訪問活動

- (a) 各委員會可不時<del>安排進行</del>訪問活動, 使讓議員能就<u>他們</u>所關 注<del>及</del>與立法會事務有關的事項或機構,取得第一手資料。
- (b) 訪問的日期及程序,由個別委員會的主席與有關的委員會委員及接待機構商議後訂定。訪問時間應盡可能不超過3小時。
- (c) 議員應在指定<mark>期限期</mark>前表明是否參與某項訪問活動。

- (d) <del>倘</del>若在截止<mark>期</mark>限<u>期</u>前報名的議員不足 3 人,或臨出發前有議員退出,以致訪問議員人數不足 3 人,主席會徵詢其他議員或接待機構的意見,<u>以</u>決定<del>取消應否將</del>原定訪問<u>取消</u>或<del>延期</del><del>舉行</del>押後。
- (e) 秘書處應將退出<del>某項</del>有關訪問活動的議員姓名記錄在案。

#### 整體腦繫活動

#### 30. 與政務司司長及財政司司長舉行會議

議員定期聽取政務司司長或財政司司長就專<del>題事項時事問題</del>及<del>市民公</del>聚關注的事宜作出簡報。

#### 31. 各政策局局長就行政長官《施政報告》學行簡報會

在立法會會期內,各政策局局長就行政長官——施政報告——爲議員 而設的各次簡報會,一般會於——施政報告——發表後的一星期內舉 行。所有議員均可參加此等簡報會。

#### 32. 與區議會舉行會議

- (a) 立法會議員不時與區議會議員舉行閉門會議及共進午餐,以 便就彼此關注的事項進行討論及交換意見。
- (b) 會議日期可預早暫訂,<u>冊但</u>會議的確實日期<u>則可</u>由有關的區 議會與立法會秘書處雙方議定,惟立法會議員與區議會議員 須獲得足夠時間的預告。
- (c) 會議時間通常由上午 10 時 45 分至下午 12 時 45 分, 然後共進午餐, 直至下午 2 時。
- (d) 立法會議員分成若干組,輪流與區議會議員舉行會議。
- (e) 議員須輪流擔任會議的召集人。
- (f) 倘區議會提出要求,個別議員可能獲邀請出席某次會議。
- (g) 每次會議應有最少 5 名立法會議員出席,當値的議員應盡量 出席此等會議/午餐聚會。
- (h) 倘報名參加某次會議的議員不足 5 人,則秘書處聯絡的其他 議員應<u>盡量設法抽空</u>出席<u>該次會議</u>,以確保<del>可以</del>達到會議的 最低規定人數。

- (i) <u>在會議前</u>應諮詢有關的區議會,<del>以便在</del>爲會議<del>前</del>擬備正式議 程。
- (i) 在會議後須向區議會發出會議紀要。
- (k) <del>議員</del>在會議上討論的事項一會視乎情況一交由負責研究有關 政策的事務委員會或申訴部跟進處理。
- (1) 秘書處會就席上所提事項及<u>所需的</u>跟進工作與<u>政府</u>當局聯絡,而有關會議/午餐聚會的召集人則會<del>親自</del>代表出席的<u>立</u> 法會議員,親自向該區議會匯報結果。

#### 33. 議員會晤訪港外賓

- (a) 議員輪流接待訪港外賓,大部分外賓爲其他立法機關的議會 人員。輪値名冊與議員處理市民申訴及請願事宜的輪值表相 同。
- (b) 全體議員均獲通知此等會晤安排,以便感興趣的非當值議員 亦可參與。
- (c) 此等會晤並非公開進行。

#### 34. 議會聯絡小組委員會

內務委員會轄下議會聯絡小組委員會負責統籌立法會與香港以外 地區其他議會組織的一切議會聯絡活動、研究有關與該等議會組 織成立友好組織的建議,並向內務委員會作出建議。

# 在立法會主席及立法會代理主席缺席時選舉議員主持立法會會議的程序

如立法會主席及立法會代理主席<del>在末能主持</del>某次立法會會議 或<mark>當中某</mark>部分會議<del>上缺席</del>,議員應按下列程序選舉一名議員主持該次 會議。

- 2. 如立法會主席或立法會代理主席事前已知道他們均不未能主持某次會議或當中某部分會議,則立法會主席或(在立法會主席缺席時)立法會代理主席將在緊接有關會議之前的立法會會議上,邀請議員提名主持會議的議員人選。有效的提名須由一名議員口頭作出,並須由最少另外一名未獲提名的議員口頭附議,並為被獲提名的議員接納。
- 3. 如只有一<del>項名議員獲提名</del>主持會議<del>的議員提名</del>,則立法會主 席或立法會代理主席須如是宣布,並宣布該名議員<del>獲</del>選爲主持有關 會議或<del>有關</del>當中某部分會議的議員。
- 4. 如有兩項或更多提名,則立法會主席或立法會代理主席須宣布以不記名的方式進行投票,並由立法會秘書安排向每名出席會議的 議員發給一張選票,選票的格式如附件所示。
- 5. 出席會議並有意投票的議員須在選票上淸楚寫上其屬意的候選人姓名,並將選票放進投票箱。
- 6. 所有出席會議並有意投票的議員投票後,立法會秘書須安排 點算選票,並向立法會主席或立法會代理主席(視屬何情況而定)報告點 票結果。任何議員均可要求核對點票結果,予以確認。
- 7. 立法會主席或立法會代理主席須宣布點票結果,並宣布各候選人之中獲最多選票最高票數的一名候選人獲當選爲主持有關會議或 有關當中某部分會議的議員。

- 8. 如兩名或以上候選人<del>同獲最多有效選票<u>獲得相同的最高有效</u> 票數</del>,則立法會主席或立法會代理主席須宣布其將以抽籤方式決定其 中一名候選人當選爲主持會議的議員。
- 9. 立法會主席或立法會代理主席須隨即進行抽籤,並按結果隨即宣布該名候選人當選爲主持有關會議或<mark>有關當中某</mark>部分會議的議員。
- 10. 如立法會主席、立法會代理主席<mark>或及</mark>根據上述程序選出的主 持會議的議員(如有的話)在某次立法會會議上均缺席,主持會議的議員 的選舉須由出席議員中連續擔任立法會議員時間最長者主持,並按上 文所載的程序進行。

# 立法會 Legislative Council

選擧議員主持	年	月	日的立法會	會會議
Election of a Mem	ber to pre	eside at	the Council me	eting
of				

# 選票 BALLOT PAPER

請在下方空位淸楚寫上你屬意的候選人姓名 Please put down in legible form the name of the nominee of your choice in the space below

#### 以議員有直接金錢利益為理由動議 著其退席或將其表決作廢的議案的程序

#### 動議議員退席的議案

- 1. 議員如擬根據《議事規則》第 84(3A)條,以另一位議員有直接金 錢利益爲理由動議著其退席的議案,可在辯論進行期間而原議案 的待決議題未付諸表決時,向立法會主席或全體委員會主席遞交 字條,表明其有意動議此項議案。他應寫明他將在議案中提議著 其退席的議員的姓名,以及說明動議有關議案的理由。
- 2. 擬動議另一位議員退席的議案的議員,亦可同時通知有關議員, 說明動議該議案的理由。後者若打算澄淸有關事項,可藉此機會 作出澄淸。有意動議該議案的議員如在有關事項獲澄淸後決定不 動議議案,應告知立法會主席或全體委員會主席其決定。
- 3. <u>議員</u>如擬動議某議員須退席的議案, <mark>該議員</mark>應在立法會主席或全 體委員會主席提出原議案的待決議題後,立即示意發言。
- 4. 立法會主席或全體委員會主席繼而須叫喚該議員動議<del>某</del>另一位</u>議員 員退席的議案。
- 5. 立法會主席或全體委員會主席須根據《議事規則》第 84(5)條,決定是否提出某就議員領退席的議案提出待議議題。
- 6. 某議員須退席的待議議題提出後,<mark>有關該</mark>議員可根據《議事規則》 第 84(5A)條,在立法會或全體委員會會議上在其席位發言解釋, 但隨後須於該議題<u>進行</u>表決時退席。
- 7. 某議員須退席的議案如被否決,該議員可回來參加會議。

8. 某議員須退席的議案如獲通過,在立法會或全體委員會將原議題 提出待決及進行表決時,<del>有關該</del>議員須退席。

#### 動議將議員的表決作廢的議案

- 9. 在原議案進行表決後而表決結果未宣布時,議員可根據《議事規則》第 84(4)條無經預告而動議議案,以某議員有直接金錢利益爲理由將其表決作廢。該議員應在切實可行的範圍內盡早向立法會主席、全體委員會主席、委員會主席或小組委員會主席遞交字條,表明其有意動議此項議案,並盡可能通知有關議員。
- 10. (a) **如沒有命令就原議案進行點名表決**,議員如擬動議將另一位 議員的表決作廢的議案,應在立法會主席、全體委員會主席、 委員會主席或小組委員會主席說出按其判斷原議題是否獲得 所需的過半數票後,立即示意發言。
  - (b) **如有命令就原議案進行點名表決**,議員如擬動議將另一位議員的表決作廢的議案,應在立法會主席、全體委員會主席、委員會主席或小組委員會主席說出點名表決所記錄的<mark>有關</mark>議員數目後,立即示意發言。
- 11. 立法會主席、全體委員會主席、委員會主席或小組委員會主席繼 而須叫喚該議員動議將另一位議員的表決作廢的議案。
- 12. 立法會主席、全體委員會主席、委員會主席或小組委員會主席須根據《議事規則》第84(5)條,決定是否提出就將某議員的表決作廢的議案提出待議議題。
- 13. 將某議員的表決作廢的待議議題提出後,<mark>有關該</mark>議員可根據《議 | 事規則》第84(6)條,在立法會、全體委員會、委員會或小組委員 會會議上在其原位發言解釋,但隨後須於該議題<u>進行</u>表決時退 席。
- 14. 將某議員的表決作廢的議案如被否決,該議員可回來參加會議。 立法會主席、全體委員會主席、委員會主席或小組委員會主席繼 而須官布就原議案作出的決定。

- 15. 將某議員的表決作廢的議案如獲通過,
  - (a) **如沒有命令就原議案進行點名表決**,立法會主席、全體委員會主席、委員會主席或小組委員會主席須重新說出按其判斷原議題是否獲得所需的過半數票;或
  - (b) **如有命令就原議案進行點名表決**,立法會主席、全體委員會主席、委員會主席或小組委員會主席須指示立法會秘書、委員會秘書或小組委員會秘書據此將原來的點名表決贊成者及反對者數目更改;如屬立法會或全體委員會的會議,亦一併更改有關議員在席的影響。

致 : 立法會秘書

 $\Delta$ 

To : Clerk to the Legislative Council

## 立法會 LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL

# 要請求立法會主席准許無經預告而提出質詢 SEEKING THE PRESIDENT'S PERMISSION TO ASK QUESTION WITHOUT NOTICE

根據請按《議事規則》第 24(4)條,請徵求立法會主席 進許本人在年月日舉行的立法會會證 告而提出附載的口頭/書面*質詢,理由如下: In accordance with Rule 24(4) of the Rules of Procedure, president's permission for me to ask the oral/written* question at notice at the Legislative Council meeting on or grounds:	是上 <del>·無</del> 經預 □ please seek the tached without
2. 本人認爲,基於上述理由,本人認爲此乃性質急切及大關係的事項。 Based on the above reasons, I consider that it is of an urgent relates to a matter of public importance.	·
3. 本人已於年月日上午/下午 時_ 質詢私下向政府(政務司司長Δ/財政司司長Δ/律政司司 長Δ)作出預告。 Private notice of the question has been given to the Gove Secretary for AdministrationΔ/ Financial SecretaryΔ/ Secretary Secretary forΔ) at am/pm on	長Δ/局   ernment (Chief for JusticeΔ/
簽署 Signature: 姓名	
Name: 日期 Date:	
* 請 <mark>將删去</mark> 不適用者 <del>删去</del> * Please delete as appropriate  Δ 請 <mark>將删去</mark> 不適用者 <del>删去</del> 或填上適 <mark>用當</mark> 的政府官員職銜	   

Please delete or insert the title of the Government official as appropriate

#### 選舉內務委員會主席及副主席的程序

#### 主持選舉的議員

內務委員會主席<u>及副主席</u>的選舉須在委員會<del>的一次</del>會議上進行。

#### 委員會主席的選舉

#### 主持選舉的委員

- 2. 就內務委員會及事務委員會而言 ——
  - (a) 如選舉在<del>新一屆</del>立法會<u>每屆任期</u>的<u>內務</u>委員會<u>或事務</u> <u>委員會</u>首次會議上擧行,<u>出席委員中</u>排名最先<del>的立法</del> <del>會議員</del>者須主持選擧。<u>如他獲提名候選主席一職,在</u> 未獲提名的出席委員中排名最先者須主持選擧。
  - 3.(b) 在其他任何一次的主席選舉中,在選舉前擔任內務委員會或事務委員會主席的議委員須主持選舉。如他或地缺席或獲提名候選該職位,在選舉前擔任內務委員會或事務委員會副主席的議委員須主持選舉。如該兩名在選舉前擔任內務委員會正副主席的議委員均缺席或獲提名候選該職位,出席的其他議委員中排名最先者須主持選舉。如他獲提名候選該職位,在未獲提名的出席委員中排名最先者須主持選舉。
- 3. 至於法案委員會及小組委員會,出席委員中排名最先者須主 持選舉。如他獲提名候選主席一職,在未獲提名的出席委員中排名最 先者須主持選舉。

### 選<u>學程序</u> 選<del>學</del>委員會主席

- 4. <u>在選舉開始時,</u>主持選擧的<mark>議委</mark>員須即席邀請<mark>議委</mark>員提名委員會主席一職的人選。有效的提名<mark>得須</mark>由一名<u>議委</u>員口頭作出,<del>並須</del>由最少另外一名未獲提名的<u>議委</u>員口頭附議,並爲被獲提名的議委員接納。<u>委員倘提名缺席的委員候選該職位,必須表明已獲得該名缺席</u>委員接受提名。
- 5. 如主持選舉的委員獲提名候選主席一職,除非委員會另有決定,否則須按上文第2段或第3段所述,由其他委員代替他主持選擧。

- <u>56</u>. 如只有一項提名,則主持選舉的<mark>議委</mark>員須宣布該名候選人當 選爲委員會主席。
- 67. 如有兩項或更多提名,則主持選舉的<mark>議委</mark>員須宣布以不記名的方式進行投票,並指示委員會秘書發給每名出席會議的<mark>議委</mark>員(包括主持選舉的<del>議委</del>員)一張選票。
- 78. 出席會議<u>及並</u>有意投票的<mark>議委</mark>員須在選票上淸楚寫上其屬意的候選人姓名,並將選票放進投票箱。
- **89**. 所有出席會議<u>及並</u>有意投票的<mark>議委</mark>員投票後,委員會秘書須在全體出席會議的<mark>議委</mark>員面前點算選票,並向主持選擧的<mark>議委</mark>員報告點票結果;該名主持選擧的<mark>議委</mark>員須核對點票結果,予以確認。
- 910. 主持選擧的<mark>議委</mark>員須宣布各候選人之中獲<del>最多有效選票</del><u>最高</u> 有效票數</u>的一名候選人當選爲委員會主席。
- 1011. 如兩名或以上候選人<del>同獲最多有效選票</del>獲得相同的最高有效 票數,則主持選舉的議委 員須宣布其將以抽籤方式決定如何對該等候 選人投決定性的一票。
- 1112. 主持選舉的<mark>議委</mark>員須<u>隨即</u>進行抽籤,按結果對其中一名候選 | 人投決定性的一票,並隨即宣布該名候選人當選爲委員會主席。
- 1213. 隨後,當選委員會主席的<mark>議委</mark>員須主持會議,並視乎情況,著手處理會議的其他事項或宣布休會。

#### 選舉委員會副主席的選舉

#### 主持選舉的委員

1314. 內務委員會主席須主持選舉。(如主席缺席,則由出席<mark>議委</mark>員中排名最先者主持選舉。)如他獲提名候選副主席一職,在未獲提名的 出席委員中排名最先者須主持選舉。

#### 選舉程序

- 1415. 主席(或主持選舉的委員)須即席邀請議委員提名委員會副主席一職的人選。有效的提名得須由一名議委員口頭作出,並須由最少另外一名未獲提名的議委員口頭附議,並爲被獲提名的議委員接納。 委員倘提名缺席的委員候選該職位,必須表明已獲得該名缺席委員接受提名。
- 1516. 如只有一項提名,則主席須宣布該名候選人當選爲委員會副主席。

- 1617. 如有兩項或更多提名,則主席須宣布以不記名的方式進行投票,並指示委員會秘書發給每名出席會議的議委員(包括主席)一張選票。
- 1718. 出席會議<u>及並</u>有意投票的<mark>議委</mark>員須在選票上淸楚寫上其屬意 的候選人姓名,並將選票放進投票箱。
- 1819. 所有出席會議<u>及並</u>有意投票的<mark>議委</mark>員投票後,委員會秘書須在全體出席會議的<mark>議委</mark>員面前點算選票,並向主席報告點票結果;主席須核對點票結果,予以確認。
- 1920. 主席須宣布各候選人之中獲<del>最多有效選票</del>最高有效票數的一名候選人當選爲委員會副主席。
- 2021. 如兩名或以上候選人<del>同獲最多有效選票<u>獲得相同的最高有效</u> 票數</del>,則主席須宣布其將以抽籤方式決定如何對該等候選人投決定性 的一票。
- 2122. 主席須<u>隨即</u>進行抽籤,按結果對其中一名候選人投決定性的 一票,並隨即宣布該名候選人當選爲委員會副主席。

# 有關就基於公眾利益而享有特權的要求<mark>的</mark> 作出裁定的常習及慣例

對於凡任何人士應訊出席立法會某轄下委員會會議時所提出<mark>有關</mark>"基於公眾利益而享有特權"的要求,<u>就該等要求</u>作出裁定的常習及慣例將如附表所載述。

#### 附表

#### 1. 在此附表 ——

"有關方面", (relevant body)就有證人須出席作證或出示任何 文據、簿冊、紀錄或文件的委員會而言,

- (a) 如委員會的主席及副主席均出席,即指該會的主席及副主席(在正副主席意見出現分歧的情況下, 凡提述有關方面作出的裁定,須理解爲主席的裁定);
- (b) 如副主席缺席,即指主席;
- (c) 如主席缺席,即指副主席;
- (d) 如主席及副主席均缺席,即指在正副主席缺席期間委員會所選出代行主席的委員。

#### "證人"(witness)指 ——

- (a) 被合法地命令到委員會席前作證或出示任何文 據、簿冊、紀錄或文件的人士;及
- (b) 行政長官爲出席委員會會議事宜而指定的任何官 員。
- 2. 倘在委員會的公開會議上,證人拒絕公開或閉門回答任何可能向他提出的問題,或拒絕出示任何交據、簿冊、紀錄或文件,並要求享有特權,所稱原因是作答或出示有關文據、簿冊、紀錄或文件將有違公眾利益,則下列程序適用 ——
  - (a) 主席須告知證人,他可以向有關方面在保密情況下解釋 其理由,而該有關方面將向委員會作出裁定,但卻不會 透露證人聲稱他應有特權不透露的任何資料或文據、簿 冊、紀錄或文件。

- (b) 倘證人同意向有關方面解釋其理由,則該有關方面須作 出安排考慮此等理由,並告知委員會其裁定。
- (c) 倘有關方面裁定,證人要求享有特權,毋須回答某一問題或出示某份交據、簿冊、紀錄或文件的理由充分,則委員會須免證人回覆此問題或出示此份文據、簿冊、紀錄或文件。
- (d) 倘有關方面裁定,證人要求享有特權,毋須回答某一問題或出示某份交據、簿冊、紀錄或文件的理由不充分, 則委員會可命令證人回答有關問題或出示有關文據、簿冊、紀錄或文件。
- (e) 倘證人繼續拒絕回答某一問題或出示某份文據、簿冊、 紀錄或文件,則委員會可採取其認爲合適並在其權力範 圍內的行動。
- (f) 倘證人不同意根據第(b)分段的安排向有關方面解釋其 理由,則委員會可採取其認爲合適並在其權力範圍內的 行動。
- 3. 倘證人在委員會公開會議上,以基於公眾利益而享有特權爲理由,拒絕公開回答任何可能向其提出的問題,或拒絕公開出示任何文據、簿冊、紀錄或文件,但卻要求在委員會的閉門會議上回答此等問題或出示此等文據、簿冊、紀錄或文件,則下列程序適用 ——
  - (a) 委員會閉門商議是否接納證人的要求。
  - (b) 委員會須正式表決以作決定。
  - (c) 倘委員會決定接納證人的要求,則證人在閉門會議所作 的答覆或所出示的文據、簿冊、紀錄或文件一律不得公 開。除非委員會在有關閉門會議決定證人要求保密的理 由不充分,則作別論。在作出此等決定前,委員會須讓 證人有機會就某項答問或某份文據、簿冊、紀錄或文件 而說明其基於公眾利益,要求享有特權的理由。